Clarke County Planning Commission
AGENDA - Comprehensive Plan Committee Meeting

Thursday, December 14, 2023 — 2:30PM

Berryville/Clarke County Government Center — A/B Meeting Room

1. Approval of Agenda
2. Approval of Minutes — October 31, 2023 Meeting
3. Old Business
A. Continued Discussion, Rural Lands Plan Development — White Post Village
4. New Business
A. Schedule Next Meetings

5. Adjourn

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 10of 23



Clarke County Planning Commission

DRAFT MINUTES - Comprehensive Plan Committee Meeting
Tuesday, October 31, 2023 - 1:30PM
Berryville/Clarke County Government Center - Main Meeting Room

ATTENDANCE:
Randy Buckley (White Post) v’ | John Staelin (Millwood) v
Bob Glover (Millwood) v’ | Terri Catlett (Board of Supervisors) v
George L. Ohrstrom, Il (Ex Officio) X

STAFF PRESENT: Brandon Stidham (Director of Planning), Jeremy Camp (Senior Planner/
Zoning Administrator)

CALL TO ORDER: By Mr. Stidham at 1:30PM.

1. Approval of Agenda
Members approved the agenda by consensus as presented by Staff.
2. Approval of Minutes — October 6, 2023 Meeting

Members voted unanimously to approve the October 6, 2023 meeting minutes as presented by
Staff.

Motion to approve the October 6, 2023 meeting minutes as presented by Staff:
Buckley (moved) AYE Staelin AYE
Glover AYE Catlett AYE (seconded)
3. Old Business -- Continued Discussion, Rural Lands Plan Development — Millwood
Village

Mr. Stidham stated that the discussion will be focused on the village of Millwood. He noted the
2004 report from “The Future of Millwood Study Committee” included in the packet and said it
reflects many of the same issues that are still being addressed today.

Mr. Stidham said that he wanted to start with a discussion of the draft plan area map included in
the packet and asked for comments from the members. He explained that this approach was
created by using the Millwood residents’ entryway signs to plot a four-sided plan area that
appears to include areas that most would agree are within the village. Commissioner Staelin said
how you define what this plan area means is important, noting that it definitely captures the
village’s transportation network. Mr. Stidham said it will be important in the village meeting to
give the public enough background information before asking them to comment on the map. He
said the map is intended to show properties within (in whole or in part) or adjacent to the plan
area and would be subject to the Rural Lands Plan’s guidance. Commissioner Catlett said that
she thinks the plan area looks a little big. Commissioner Glover suggested labeling the map as
the plan area. Commissioner Catlett noted that Carter Hall is only partially in the plan area so

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 2 of 23



how does the guidance apply to that property. Commissioner Glover suggested having the line
more along the road frontage.

Mr. Stidham said that as a rule of thumb, a plan area needs to be general unless it is based on
specified boundaries such as the Berryville Area Plan and annexation area. He added that
Millwood is an unincorporated community that has no boundaries and we are attempting to
create boundaries for a study area. He said there will need to be language that says any
properties within, in whole or in part, or adjacent to the plan area will be subject to the Plan’s
guidance. He added that the fact that the plan area is large is a benefit as it appears to include all
potential adjoining properties that could have impacts on the village.

Commissioner Staelin noted that there is extensive language on the future of the Carter Hall
property which he likes. He said calling the area depicted on the map as a study area or plan area
is clear, adding that the people in that area want to know that we are considering what will
happen next to them as we did with Carter Hall. Commissioner Glover asked if the boundary
could follow property lines in some places and also asked for confirmation that the properties in
light green are conservation easements. Mr. Stidham confirmed that those are eased properties.
Mr. Camp noted to Commissioner Glover that the corners of the plan area are the Millwood
signs. Vice Chair Buckley said that he thinks the plan area lines make sense but it is weird that
there are so many areas within the boundary that he would not think would be part of Millwood.
Commissioner Glover said this is why he suggested a road frontage approach and Vice Chair
Buckley replied that there are so many different roads going in different directions.
Commissioner Glover said that the fact that some properties are split may cause confusion with
the property owners. Mr. Stidham said that it will need to be described as a general line rather
than a hard boundary and Commissioner Glover suggested using a dashed line.

Commissioner Catlett said that in a recent Millwood Community Association communications
committee meeting, it was noted that four speed tables are proposed to be installed for traffic
calming. She also noted that the Association is planning to create a committee to design changes
for the welcome signs, particularly to note to travelers that they are entering a different area. She
said it would be interesting to see how the signs change or if they are going to be moved. Mr.
Stidham noted that the 2004 study recommended installing signs that caution drivers to observe
the posted speed limits.

Mr. Stidham noted that another thing you can do graphically with the plan area is to show the
boundary as a cloud to emphasize that it is a general area. Commissioner Staelin said the dotted
line approach makes sense too. He added that it would be better if you could adjust the lines to
incorporate the boundary Rural Residential (RR)-zoned lots that are only partially included in the
plan area but you would still be left essentially with a trapezoid-shaped area. Mr. Camp noted
that a dashed line softens the boundary and makes it appear less concrete. Commissioner Glover
said that people may complain that their assessments might be adversely impacted based on
whether they are inside or outside of the plan area.

Mr. Stidham said that having larger properties included in the plan area is important so that the

Plan’s guidance can apply to those properties. He noted that Carter Hall is partially in the plan
area and guidance is proposed to address it, but also noted that future development could occur

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 30f23



on the game preserve property that would adversely affect the village. There was a brief side
conversation about how the County and State regulate game preserves and whether Staff has
received any complaints about the Millwood game preserve.

Commissioner Catlett asked if Powhatan School is included in the plan area and Mr. Stidham
noted the location of those lots on the map. Commissioner Staelin asked if there would be value
in having guidance to address future development of Powhatan School. Mr. Stidham replied that
it is a good question because the larger the school grows, the more traffic will increase on Route
723. He said the part of the property adjoining the plan area is their athletic field and he added
that he did not think they would expand onto their only athletic field. He said we definitely
could include recommendations to address future development at the school. Vice Chair
Buckley suggested verifying that the Crocker Conservancy is correctly shown on the map
because it is in conservation easement.

Mr. Stidham said that Staff will make adjustments to this map based on today’s discussion and
will bring it back for the Committee’s review before finalizing for use in public meetings.
Commissioner Staelin recommended for each member to drive the roads in the village to get
familiar with the properties. Mr. Stidham drew the members’ attention to the map showing the
Neighborhood Commercial (CN)-zoned properties, the Historic (H) Overlay District, and the
boundaries of the Commercial Historic District on the National Register. There was a brief side
conversation about the Lee property located off of Tannery Lane and how it was originally zoned
CN.

Mr. Stidham provided an overview of the draft Goals and Strategies document, noting that it can
be used in a number of different ways. He said that it can be presented at public input meetings
to get reactions from participants or we can scale the document back so as not to give the
appearance that we are asking the public to approve it. He said for this group’s work, it is
important to get as much on paper at this stage for discussion. He added that a comment was
made at the last meeting to have original guidance language and not simply repeat guidance that
is already in the Comprehensive Plan or other component plans. Commissioner Staelin said that
in the interest of full disclosure, he owns properties in Millwood including the post office

property.

Mr. Stidham reviewed each of the draft Goals and Strategies and provided background
information for each one. Regarding Goal 1 Strategy 1, Mr. Stidham noted that a new zoning
district tailored to Millwood could be developed that, among other things, could include
residential design requirements to ensure new homes are compatible with the village.
Commissioner Glover asked if we had this anywhere else in the County. Mr. Stidham replied no
but that prior staff attempted to use uniform size and setback requirements in the RR District to
achieve a similar result. Mr. Camp added that the concept is similar to the Historic Access
Corridor Overlay District. Mr. Stidham noted that regulating house size could be a problem and
also noted that residents indicated in the 2004 report that they did not want the Historic Overlay
District to restrict what could be done with residential properties. He said this could be a
question to pose at the public meetings for input.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 4 of 23



Commissioner Staelin asked about the concept of allowing residential properties to be used
flexibly for some commercial uses, specifically asking about what commercial uses would be of
an appropriate scale. Mr. Stidham replied that professional office is one example. He noted that
someone may be interested in renovating a house but does not want to live in it and could rent it
out as a low-impact business office. Vice Chair Buckley asked how this would have affected the
former Black Penny building if the rule was previously in place. Mr. Stidham replied that it
would have allowed that structure to be used as a residence or a business. He added that we
would want this concept presented to the public for input and we would need to make it clear that
this would be added to the Rural Lands Plan guidance with a separate text amendment process
later. He noted that our home occupation regulations are pretty lenient so this approach may not
be necessary. He also noted that the 2004 report stated concerns with redevelopment of RR-
zoned lots and a desire to have a minimum lot size of %2 acre. He said that text amendments after
2004 established the current minimum lot size with utilities at 30,000 square feet. Commissioner
Staelin said that these are good points to bring to the community for comment. Mr. Stidham
replied that even if they say they want things to stay the same, this is valuable input for the Plan.

Mr. Stidham reviewed Goal 1 Strategy 2. Commissioner Staelin asked what the definition of
“village core” is. Mr. Stidham replied that it is the properties zoned RR and CN and that this
will be defined in the text. Regarding special uses having to mitigate impacts on existing uses,
Commissioner Staelin asked for confirmation that this includes on AOC properties as well. Mr.
Stidham replied yes and that this includes all properties in whole or in part in the plan area.
Commissioner Glover suggested referring to “nearby properties” and not “nearby village
properties.”

Regarding Goal 1 Strategy 2, Commissioner Glover asked if there are properties in the village
that are on private wells that could be impacted by development on the Carter Hall property. Mr.
Stidham said that he thought there might be some properties still using wells and noted that he
would add this into the text. He noted that the water line goes through the entire village but the
sewer service district stops at the church on the hill. Commissioner Staelin noted that the sewer
was limited this way to avoid serving larger properties to the north that could be further
subdivided. He also said that the grant program was to benefit low-to-moderate income
homeowners so the sewer was limited to the smaller properties in the village. Commissioner
Catlett asked when the sewer was installed and Commissioner Staelin said around 2003.

Mr. Camp noted that Goal 1 Strategy 3 did not specifically reference noise and light impacts.
Mr. Stidham replied that this is included in “significant degradation of natural resources,” noting
that the Comprehensive Plan defines all of the elements that are considered to be natural
resources. Commissioner Staelin noted that Goal 2 Strategy 4 addresses avoiding light pollution.
Mr. Stidham asked if there needed to be specific language to address the office building.
Commissioner Staelin said that we should be careful not to imply that the nonconforming use of
the building is not allowed. Mr. Stidham asked about the proposed future use of the office
building. He said that we probably should not say that there are no compatible uses for that
building because there may be one that we are not contemplating, such as a low-volume day
school. Mr. Camp suggested adding language to the narrative to describe the office building and
preferred uses. Commissioner Staelin suggested modifying “Proposals for other uses” to
“Proposals for other future uses.” Commissioner Glover suggested language to make it clear

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 5 0of 23



how close Carter Hall is to neighboring properties and uses. Mr. Stidham noted that this is a
matter of perspective for future owners that may come from urban areas and think that the
neighboring properties are a long distance away from Carter Hall. Commissioner Catlett
suggested referencing “agricultural neighbors.” Mr. Camp said that “natural resources” is not
always perceived as including light and sound. Commissioner Glover suggested adding “and
nearby properties” after “natural resources” in the next to last sentence. Mr. Stidham noted that
it would be a good idea in this case to have the text description of Carter Hall and the recent
zoning case for the public to discuss and comment on.

Vice Chair Buckley suggested using the language “quality of life”” in addition to natural
resources to describe the impacts to be mitigated. Members and staff agreed that this is good
language to add. Mr. Stidham asked whether “quality of life” should be added to Goal 1.
Commissioner Staelin cautioned that you could be implying to focus on quality of life but not so
much on some other aspect. Mr. Stidham noted that one could argue that the proponents of the
Carter Hall special use application who would have benefited by having jobs there would have
their quality of life improved with the application’s approval. Commissioner Catlett noted that
there is also the question of the economic viability of the village.

Mr. Stidham asked whether prohibiting public sewer to Carter Hall is the best guidance since it
would benefit the environment by replacing the drainfields. Commissioner Staelin said yes since
you can develop the property more intensively with sewer. Mr. Stidham proposed the example
of a compatible private school use that planned to put a portion of the property in conservation
easement but also required public sewer as a situation in which we may want to allow a sewer
connection. Commissioner Staelin said that the office building should be described as a
nonconforming use that should not be expanded. Mr. Stidham noted that someone could apply
for a special use permit to operate a retail store in the office building.

Regarding Goal 1 Strategy 4, Commissioner Glover suggested referencing that the water and
sewer systems have limited capacity. Mr. Stidham replied that he would add “village’s limited”
before “public water and sewer system.” Commissioner Staelin said this relates back to the
office building issue and limited development capability.

Regarding Goal 1 Strategy 5, Commissioner Staelin asked for confirmation that this strategy
does not include Carter Hall and Mr. Stidham replied that this is correct. Mr. Stidham asked
what the members thought should be considered the commercial historic district, suggesting that
the CN-zoned properties would be the most logical ones to use. Commissioner Staelin said there
is limited demand for commercial property in Millwood and if you wanted to allow more
commercial uses, they would have to be located contiguous to the commercial district. Mr.
Camp asked how the Red Schoolhouse would be treated and Mr. Stidham replied that we are just
focusing on uses in the commercial district. Mr. Stidham added that the question is what
properties do we want to consider to be in the commercial district, and he reiterated that the CN-
zoned properties might be the best ones to use. Commissioner Glover asked if Millwood is
going to be served through the All Points fiber broadband project. Mr. Stidham said he could not
remember because Millwood is currently served by Comcast. He said it is possible that they
could be served if Comcast service is not currently provided at Federal broadband minimum
speeds. Commissioner Glover said that if fiber broadband is available, it might make business

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 6 of 23



development in Millwood more viable. Mr. Camp suggested that the real question is whether we
want to expand commercial zoning beyond the current CN-zoned properties.

Mr. Stidham reviewed Goal 2 and its proposed strategies. Regarding Strategy 2, Commissioner
Glover asked about the second mill in Millwood. Mr. Stidham noted the location of the Lower
Mill on the draft plan area map. Commissioner Glover suggested adding language to note that
we encourage conservation easements. Commissioner Staelin said easements could only be
taken on Agricultural-Open Space-Conservation (AOC)-zoned properties but it would be good to
note that we do not have an issue with conservation easements adjacent to the Millwood’s
commercial or residential zoned properties. Mr. Stidham said he would add a new strategy under
Goal 2 to encourage conservation easements on AOC-zoned properties.

Regarding Goal 2 Strategy 3, Mr. Stidham asked if the members were comfortable with
including the Lower Mill. Commissioner Glover noted that the Lower Mill is privately owned
and Mr. Stidham added that it has not been open to the public. Commissioner Staelin said it is
not something we want to see turned into a commercial use and Vice Chair Buckley added that it
should be protected. Mr. Camp said the owner has wanted to hold events there in the past. Mr.
Stidham suggested changing the language to, “Protect and preserve the historic mills.” He said
this would note that we want them protected for historical purposes and not repurposed for
commercial uses. Commissioner Staelin said we encourage adaptive reuse in another strategy.
Mr. Stidham said that “protect and preserve” would prevent converting the Burwell-Morgan Mill
to a different use. Vice Chair Buckley said that the topography at the Lower Mill makes entry
and parking difficult. Commissioner Staelin said that the Lower Mill is no longer a functioning
mill and the internal workings are gone. Mr. Stidham suggested removing the strategy.
Commissioner Glover said that we should keep the language because we recommend the future
use of Carter Hall in a different strategy. Commissioner Staelin said we did not come to a
consensus on whether to address the office building at Carter Hall specifically. Commissioner
Glover suggested merging the mills into a different strategy. Mr. Stidham said that he would
only reference the Burwell-Morgan Mill in Strategy 3. Commissioner Catlett said the Lower
Mill is still a unique structure that should be protected.

Regarding Goal 2 Strategy 4, Commissioner Glover suggested referencing dark sky compliant
lighting. Mr. Stidham noted that “light pollution” also encompasses light generation that would
not be addressed by dark sky regulations such as the glare that would have been generated from
the proposed glass conservatory building on the Carter Hall property. Commissioner Glover
asked if “avoid” should be replaced with “prohibit.” Mr. Stidham added that you are actually
trying to prevent unnecessary light pollution such as the glass conservatory building or the use of
spotlights to highlight a building rather than for safety purposes.

Regarding Goal 2 Strategy 5, Commissioner Staelin asked about whether this could help us with
the historic mill strategy and Mr. Camp asked if buildings outside the Historic Overlay District
should be included. Mr. Stidham suggested striking Strategy 3 and adding the sentence at the
beginning of Strategy 5, “Protect and preserve historic structures within the plan study area.”
Members agreed with this change.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 7 of 23



Mr. Stidham reviewed Goal 3 and noted the questions about who should be responsible for
exploring and developing new parking options. Commissioner Staelin noted that the Board
would probably not be interested in committing public funds. Commissioner Catlett said that the
County does not want to be responsible for maintaining the lot and it may set a precedent for
White Post or Pine Grove to ask for a County parking lot. Mr. Camp said we can modify our
zoning regulations to facilitate approval of off-street parking.

4, New Business

Members agreed to tentatively schedule the next meeting for Thursday, December 14 at 2:00PM
pending Commissioner Glover confirming his availability.

ADJOURN: Meeting was adjourned by consensus at 2:53PM.

Brandon Stidham, Clerk

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 8 of 23



Clarke County Planning Department
101 Chalmers Court, Suite B

Berryville, Virginia 22611

(540) 955-5132

www.clarkecounty.aov

TO: Planning Commission Comprehensive Plan Committee members

FROM: Brandon Stidham, Planning Director

RE: Continued Discussion, Rural Lands Plan Development — White Post Village
DATE: December 6, 2023

The December 14 Committee meeting will be focused on White Post issues. The following
documents are enclosed for your review:

Draft White Post plan area map

Staff has provided an initial draft of a possible White Post plan area for the Committee’s
discussion. Since the White Post properties zoned Rural Residential (RR) and Neighborhood
Commercial (CN) fall in a somewhat linear fashion, Staff was able to use an oval to capture a
relatively compact village plan area. You will note that several large AOC-zoned lots are also
included (in part or in whole) much like the Millwood plan area, and guidance language can be
drafted to reference how these perimeter properties relate to the RR and CN-zoned lots.

One specific discussion item for the Committee is whether the plan area should extend to the
northeast beyond the Berrys Ferry Road rail crossing to capture additional RR and CN-zoned
lots. Staff chose to extend the plan area in this manner both to incorporate all RR and CN-zoned
lots and because there does not appear to be a natural breaking point on Berrys Ferry Road aside
from the rail crossing itself. Staff welcomes input from Committee members on this initial
approach.

Also included for reference is a map depicting the Historic (H) Overlay District. Unlike
Millwood’s Historic Overlay District, the White Post H District is mostly composed of RR-
zoned lots with the exception of the three small CN-zoned lots at the village core.

White Post Village Goals and Strategies. Staff developed this rough draft of Goals and
Strategies with the objective to create new and more specific guidance for White Post that is not
already stated in the Comprehensive Plan. As we did with Millwood, Staff attempted to identify
as many issues as possible to reflect in the strategies and they are organized under three general
Goals:

1. Preserve the form and scale of buildings and encourage compatible uses.
2. Protect the village’s character and historic resources.
3. Support compatible, neighborhood-scale business uses.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 9 of 23



Comments and questions for each strategy are included to facilitate the Committee’s discussion.
The objective is to ensure that all possible issues are identified and addressed in the final
document so Staff encourages members to offer additional suggestions and modifications.

Revised Work Plan

An updated copy of the work plan is enclosed for your reference. Upcoming meeting topics for
January-March are included which will get us through the issue identification task and begin
work on planning the village workshops. Below are some suggested dates for these meetings:

January
e Thursday, January 18 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)

e Tuesday, January 23 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)
e Thursday, January 25 (10:00AM)

February
e Tuesday, February 13 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)

e Wednesday, February 14 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)
e Thursday, February 15 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)

March
e Tuesday, March 12 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)
e Wednesday, March 13 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)
e Thursday, March 14 (10:00AM or 2:00PM)

Revised Concept Plan and Millwood Goals/Strategies

Staff has also provided updated copies of the Rural Lands Plan Concept Plan and the Millwood
Goals and Strategies draft. Edits requested at our recent meetings are shown in red font in both
documents. If there are any errors or omissions, feel free to let me know prior to or at the
December 14 meeting.

Please let me know if you have questions in advance of the meeting or if you will not be able to
attend.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 10 of 23



x @ o O & @ @ ( & & v

G O & & U o G Oy & e B k R
QG & & & & G & G O & & & G

% O O O O & G & & & & O

& & & & &

& & G &
& & G

-~

—. =

OvUv'\vaL'
: O O G O O G O O C
i Bl 0y paes | ' e 4 B Oy O O
o O G G G LGl S\ , _‘
S O Oyl O 0% G4 Gy Oy G
O O O Or Ov O G & & G
LG 0 OO Oy O O O G By O Oy
GO G O G 000 G Oy G B O S
S O O G O O G Gy G T G O
C~@C&CR@O~O~&C~@\JO~O~
0 Co O G Oy OO0 OBy B Gv O Gy
e s o e ilite GO O G G O By
G B O G Qv O O
S Oy O By O O G
Ao e T et R e T
G G O O O O O G & G O

Space/Conservation

Commercial
] Neighborhood

Agricultural/Open

| Rural Rasidertial

Zoning
]

G
o8

A

Lage

LO~O~O":"CLCLO.QQ&(}OV(}O'CLCL ) P

White Post Area
Conservation Easements
Public Roads

Waterlines

O O O O O O & & & G G GG
G L Gl s Gt Oy O Gk Rl i oy G & &G G

@ GO G Oy G Ge By Gl Ch & G Oy O G O
IO G v G Oy G O Oy G & & G G G

')

n&(}OVG.CA.C&@C%"‘CA&QW(}.GF‘

- Private Roads

)

o 3
=
G ‘

TS\
TLEN
8% (T e S B e SR O AT & & & & K 205 A \\'
oo Mo il Tl A e TR e TR © ARC ARE.,  © /‘
o vk g g e (@ e S G Oy g “
G & & & G
o G G &
o & O
& G G
o O &
& O C

;\Q. G G

G\ * C

O GO (¥
G\& @

o
o & O

& & &

X O & G G G
& Gy O G G G
* & &
& & O & & C
& & & & {
& & O

-y

G O O |

o;ﬁrﬁ‘i\’t
5%

%

,\\"arg;c

G O & & & G

G & & & G
G & & & &
& & & G

o &

QI
prehénsive
s

o

3Com

202
@)

& & & & & O O G &
G O G O O O O O &

14

G K G & G

r

o

o G O & & &G &G

p
;ujbé

Mo o666 & & G & & G &
B o 0 OO GG GGG O
; o O (X0l T e Y e W e I Sl e N A
o o o G oo o b G O
( 7C " DI ORIy

& &

hce

O G O OO0




mc_—cowam§ >HCDOO mv_l—m—o AV L¥:01 ¥8 €202/¥0/| uo pajuld 3008 00 0

Punesw sapiuwion ey

‘BIEP U3 JO UoPRIUAsAIdAISIW JO
asnsiw ay) Joj ajqisuodsal jou
aie sjuRYNSUOD S3 pue Aunoy |

ayseln Auo sasodind Gujuueyd |
PUE [BUOREWLIOJU J0j PapiACId /]
9JE 2YS SIU} UO UMOYS BIEP AL

102 ﬁ
9Ly
= L NER w>mmmm '

= wen, — .
%%

N

VISTA

spuod
sweass JuspIuIRu| [
sweang [eluanad
sweans

esy, uenyoe gty
=]

sbuiping cmv

ey

speoy [

Speoy ajeAud
speoy Ajunod axie|n

edQ sanuno Buipunoung
KemybiH s1eys
KemubiH sn
ajejsia|
Speoy Jolepy
Asepunog Aunoy m”._m_.o
) NSSUOD/SO/ASSI0-
OV) AMBSU0D/SO/BY [
)) AeMH [e1018WWOD gy
D) PQUN [BI0IOWWOD [~
1) [enuspisay [einy
Buiuoz Aunod
=
10UISIC QUOISIH 2007
]
s|aosed
[
onand




DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

WHITE POST VILLAGE GOALS AND STRATEGIES

GOAL 1. Preserve the form and scale of buildings and encourage compatible uses.

Strategy 1
Consider developing zoning regulations specifically for White Post to ensure compatible current
and future uses and structures.

Comments for Committee:
e This strategy is duplicated from the Millwood Goals and Strategies.

e The minimum lot size for RR-zoned lots in White Post is one acre (no sewer service
district exists). Of the 118 RR-zoned lots in the draft plan area, 66 are under one acre in
size and therefore nonconforming.

e Asdiscussed with Millwood, should a new “White Post Village” base zoning district be
created to allow for transition to and from Rural Residential (RR) and Neighborhood
Commercial (CN)? The district could also include modified lot requirements to provide
more flexibility for construction on nonconforming lots.

Strateqy 2
Prohibit the rezoning of lots zoned Agricultural-Open Space-Conservation (AOC) located within

the Plan Area to RR or CN. Ensure that special uses approved on these AOC-zoned properties —
particularly those lots located in whole or in part within the village core — mitigate adverse
impacts to existing uses on adjoining and nearby village properties.

Comments for Committee:

e This strategy is duplicated from the Millwood Goals and Strategies. It ensures that White
Post can only grow and change within current zoning districts and the allowable uses in
those districts. Language regarding special uses ensures that proposals must mitigate
impacts to existing uses.

e Are there any situations in which rezoning all or part of an AOC property to RR or CN
could be beneficial to the village? Should the CN-zoned properties at the railroad
crossing be limited to their current configuration?

e Should there be a policy included to address downzoning from RR or CN to AOC?

Strategy 3
Discourage expansion of the public water system specifically to increase capacity for future

development in the village. Any future extension of public sewer service to the village should be
limited only to address failures of onsite sewage disposal systems.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 13 of 23



DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

Comments for Committee:

e There is currently no public sewer in White Post. With the development of public water
and sewer in Double Tollgate, there could be a future desire to connect that infrastructure
to the County water system in White Post and County sewer system in Waterloo. This
strategy would guide how White Post would be affected if public sewer is brought to or
passes through the village in the future.

e The presumption is that public utilities cannot be used to support growth in the village.
The water strategy mirrors the same strategy for Millwood. The sewer strategy is
consistent with strategies that will be developed for future sewer connections throughout
the unincorporated areas.

e Should language be added to allow future connections to public sewer regardless of
whether it is to remedy failing septic systems? Creation of a future sewer service area in
White Post would allow RR lot sizes to go to 30000 square feet and could take numerous
septic systems off line that may be functioning poorly or fail in the near future.

e This strategy would not prevent the water system from being expanded to provide more
efficient service to current customers.

GOAL 2. Protect the village’s character and historic resources.

Strategy 1
Evaluate the creation of historic district design guidelines for residential uses in White Post that

balance the need for historic preservation with affordability and provision of common-sense
options for property owners.

Comments for Committee:

e The Historic Overlay District in White Post, unlike the same district in Millwood, applies
overwhelmingly to residential as opposed to commercial properties. Current guidelines
should be reviewed against past examples of their application in White Post to evaluate
whether property owners were overly burdened or compliance was cost-prohibitive.

Strateqy 2
Ensure that transportation infrastructure projects respect the village’s scale and historic resources

including the “White Post” located at the intersection of Berrys Ferry Road and White Post
Road.

Comments for Committee:
e This strategy guards against any future VDOT plans to widen or otherwise modify roads
in a way that would adversely impact village properties and resources. It also confirms
that the County wants the “White Post” to remain in place.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 14 of 23



DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

Strategy 3
Avoid light pollution and protect the peace and quiet of the village by discouraging noise-

generating activities and uses.

Comments for Committee:
e This strategy is duplicated from the Millwood Goals and Strategies.

Strateqy 4
Encourage renovation of structures located outside the Historic Overlay zoning district (H) in a

manner that is consistent with the form and character of the village. Where infeasible to
renovate, promote the benefits of “mothballing” structures to limit demolition by neglect.

Comments for Committee:
e This strategy is duplicated from the Millwood Goals and Strategies. It may not be
necessary since the White Post Historic District covers many of the structures in the
village.

GOAL 3. Support compatible, neighborhood-scale business uses.

Strategy 1
Evaluate the creation of a new zoning district for White Post that would allow for a mix of Rural

Residential and Neighborhood Commercial uses in appropriate locations.

Comments for Committee:

e This strategy pairs with Goal 1 Strategy 1 and should be discussed in detail by the
Committee.

Strategy 2
Development of new and expansion of existing businesses shall minimize impacts to adjacent

and nearby properties to the greatest extent practicable. Examples of measures should include
but not be limited to:

Additional screening and buffering

Minimized, dark-sky compliant exterior lighting

Parking and hardscaping designed to prevent stormwater runoff
Daytime hours of operation

No amplified sound discernible from adjacent properties
Low-impact signage compatible with the village character

Comments for Committee:
e These measures would be evaluated primarily with special use permits but could also be
included in new zoning district regulations that may be created for the village.
e Stormwater management will be an issue with expanded business development as the
village does not have storm sewer infrastructure and some properties experience standing
water problems.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 15 of 23



DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

o Small lot sizes will also make parking challenging and hard-surfaced parking lots will
increase stormwater runoff.

Strateqy 3
Neighborhood Commercial (CN) zoned properties at the Berrys Ferry Road rail crossing should
not be expanded to facilitate future growth and development.

Comments for Committee:

e There are five properties located at the rail crossing with CN zoning — one property is
split-zoned RR and CN and another property is split-zoned AOC and CN. These
properties were zoned Light Industrial many years ago and were rezoned to RR and CN
by the County when the Light Industrial zoning district was eliminated. All of the
properties have development limitations based on size, lot dimensions, or existence of
railroad right-of-way. Properties on the village side of the crossing either currently have
or could have access to public water.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 16 of 23



12/14/2023 REVISED DRAFT

RURAL LANDS PLAN DEVELOPMENT WORK PLAN

Work on the Rural Lands Plan to be conducted by the Comprehensive Plan Committee and Staff.
Commissioners not on the Committee will be encouraged to attend and participate in the village
workshops

Task 1 — Visioning and Issue Identification

A

Define the purpose of the Rural Lands Plan:

How do we want this Plan to be used by elected/appointed officials, staff, and County
residents?

How do we avoid overlap and redundancy with the Comprehensive Plan and other
component plans?

Develop a preliminary list of policy issues to be addressed:
Policy issues affecting the rural areas in general
Specific policy issues affecting the AOC/valley areas (“Agricultural Land Plan issues”)

Specific policy issues affecting the FOC/mountain areas and lands along the Shenandoah
River (“Mountain Land Plan issues”)

Specific policy issues affecting each unincorporated village:

o Millwood

o——FPine Grove

o White Post

Solicit preliminary input from citizens via village workshops:

Explain the goals and purpose of the Rural Lands Plan as it relates to their village — what
the Plan can and cannot do

Present the preliminary list of issues identified by the Committee

Engage attendees both on the Committee’s list of issues and the issues that are most
important to them

Possible visioning sessions —how do you envision your village in the next 10-20 years?

Use workshop feedback to expand, refine, and finalize the issues list

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 17 of 23



12/14/2023 REVISED DRAFT

Task 2 — Develop Initial Plan Draft
A. Committee to agree on layout for new Plan document

B. Staff to develop initial draft of goals, objectives, and policies/action items for Committee
review and preliminary approval

C. Staff to develop Initial Plan Draft for Committee review

D. Committee develops Final Plan Draft for Commission review

Task 3 — Final Plan Development, Public Hearings, and Adoption

A. Full Commission to review Final Plan Draft, make modifications if necessary
B. Reach consensus on Final Draft for Public Hearing
C. Determine whether to have additional public input workshops before conducting formal

public hearing

D. Schedule Public Hearing and forward Final Draft to Board of Supervisors with
recommendation for adoption

UPCOMING MEETING TOPICS:

January 2024

o General policy issues for the unincorporated areas

o Policy issues for the AOC/valley areas

February 2024

o Policy issues for the FOC/mountain areas

March 2024

o Discuss planning, scheduling, and format for village workshops

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 18 of 23



12/14/2023 REVISION

RURAL LANDS PLAN CONCEPT

The “Rural Lands Plan” is a new proposed implementing component plan that would replace
both the Agricultural Land Plan and the Mountain Land Plan and serve as an overall plan for the
unincorporated areas of the County. While the County’s valley and mountain areas have obvious
differences including terrain and soil type, these rural areas share a number of challenges that
may call for the same or similar recommendations and solutions.

The Rural Lands Plan would be organized as follows:

Chapter | — Introduction

A. Summary Statement of Plan Purpose

B. Plan Goals - to include vision statements for:
. Valley — agricultural areas
. Mountain areas
. Villages

Chapter Il — Agriculture, Forestry, Agribusiness, and Agritourism

A Background information
. Define the valley environment
B. Objectives and policies
o Support the practice of agriculture and preservation of agricultural land

o Protect prime agricultural soils from development; preserve for agricultural usage
o Avoid farmland conversion (e.g., nutrient credit banks, utility-scale solar)

o Support the practice of forestry and forest management
o Protect forestry resources from development

o Identify compatible non-traditional agricultural businesses
o Address hydroponic growing facilities

o Identify compatible agribusiness and agritourism activities
o Agribusinesses — abattoirs, agricultural processing, agricultural support
o Agritourism — farm wineries/breweries/distilleries, agricultural event venues,
public assembly

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 19 of 23



12/14/2023 REVISION

Chapter 111 — Mountain Lands

A.

Background information
. Define the mountain environment

Objectives and policies
Protection of sensitive slopes and surface water features from development impacts

Viewshed protection vs. demand for scenic views

Chapter IV — Unincorporated Villages

A Background information
o Importance of defining village planning area boundaries by subject including:
o Current and future land use, zoning
o Transportation
o Public utilities
B. Millwood
1. Overview of village, current uses, and current zoning
2. Statement of village character
3. Map(s) depicting village plan area
4. Obijectives and future development policies
5. Policies regarding public water and sewer
C.—Pine-Grove
1. SveRviaw QIE °'.|||Iage eluue biges-and-current 2oning

3. I.,Ila_p(s)_ elep|et|| ? village pllanalea lici

White Post

Overview of village, current uses, and current zoning
Statement of village character

Map(s) depicting village plan area

Objectives and future development policies

Policies regarding public water

AR

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 20 of 23



12/14/2023 REVISION

Chapter V — Shared Issues and Challenges

J Balance preservation of cultural/historic/scenic/natural resources with public’s desire to
enjoy them and the rights of private property owners to use and enjoy their lands
o Reference to Shenandoah River goals/objectives in other plans

o Secondary road safety and impacts

o Conservation easements
o Areas where conservation easements are needed/prioritized
o Areas where conservation easements should not be accepted

o The importance of land use value assessment; benefits of the Agricultural & Forestal
District program

. Other residential/commercial areas and Residential uses and-subdivisions in the rural
areas

o General description of concentrated areas (e.g., Pine Grove, Shenandoah
Retreat) and isolated residential and commercial-zoned lots

o Long-term viability of private wells (including shared well systems) and onsite
sewage disposal systems

o Access to public water/sewer for existing uses allowed only to address
groundwater contamination or failed septic systems

o Policies on private roads and access easements — landowners’ responsibility

o Possibility of using sanitary districts or similar tools

. Broadband

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 21 0of 23



REVISED DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

MILLWOOD VILLAGE GOALS AND STRATEGIES

GOAL 1. Preserve the form and scale of buildings and encourage compatible uses.

Strategy 1
Consider developing zoning regulations specifically for Millwood to ensure compatible current

and future uses and structures.

Strateqgy 2
Prohibit the rezoning of lots zoned Agricultural-Open Space-Conservation (AOC) located within

the Plan Area to RR or CN. Ensure that special uses approved on these AOC-zoned properties —
particularly those lots located in whole or in part within the village core — mitigate adverse
impacts to existing uses on adjoining and nearby vitage properties within or adjacent to the
plan area.

Strateqy 3
The preferred future use of Carter Hall shall be for residential and/or agricultural purposes.

Proposals for other future uses should only be considered which demonstrate minimal impact on
village traffic and the village’s public water system and existing private wells, and that do not
result in significant degradation of natural resources. Public sewer shall not be provided to the

property.

Strateqy 4
Discourage expansion of the village’s limited public water and sewer system specifically to

increase capacity for future development in the village.

Strateqy 5
Development within Millwood’s commercial historic district should be limited to continuation of

existing uses and adaptive reuse of existing structures.

GOAL 2. Protect the village’s natural and historic resources.

Strategy 1
Minimize stormwater and pollution impacts to Spout Run.

Strategy 2
Ensure that transportation infrastructure projects preserve the village’s historic streetscape

including trees, stone walls, fences, and similar features.

Strategy-3
Nace’s historic.mills.

Strategy 3
Avetd Prohibit unnecessary light pollution and protect the peace and quiet of the village by

discouraging noise-generating activities and uses.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 22 of 23



REVISED DRAFT — 12/14/2023 COMMITTEE MEETING

Strateqy 4
Protect and preserve historic structures within the plan area including the Burwell-Morgan

Mill. Encourage renovation of structures located outside the Historic Overlay zoning district (H)
in a manner that is consistent with the form and character of the village. Where infeasible to
renovate, promote the benefits of “mothballing” structures to limit demolition by neglect.

Strategy 5
Encourage the establishment of conservation easements on adjacent and nearby AOC-zoned

properties.

GOAL 3. Ensure the safe movement of vehicles and pedestrians through the village.

Strategy 1
Recognizing that Va. Route 255 is a State primary highway, encourage implementation of

appropriate traffic calming measures to ensure compliance with posted speed limits.

Strateqy 2
Evaluate pedestrian accommodations which do not adversely impact structures and properties in

the village.

Strategy 3
Explore ways to facilitate off-street parking options to limit congestion in the village’s

commercial historic district.

December 14, 2023 Comprehensive Plan Committee meeting 23 of 23



	1_2023-12-14 Comp Plan Committee Meeting agenda
	2_10-31-2023 CP Committee minutes_DRAFT
	3_Memo re White Post discussion_12-14-2023CPmtg
	4_White_Post_Draft
	5_White Post H District
	6_White Post Goals and Strategies_DRAFT 12-14-2023
	7_Rural Lands Plan work plan_DRAFT 12-14-2023CPcomm
	8_Rural Lands Plan concept_12-14-2023 REVISION
	9_Goals and Strategies_DRAFT 2 12-14-2023



